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UNITED STATESDISTRICT COURT
SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF INDIANA
INDIANAPOLISDIVISION

AUSTIN WILLIAMS, JR.,
Petitioner,
Case No. 1:16-cv-00638-WTL-DKL

VS.

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA,

N N N N N N N N N

Respondent.
Entry Discussing Motion for Relief Pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 2255
and Denying Certificate of Appealability

A motion pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 2255tie presumptive means by which a federal
prisoner can challenge hisnviction or sentencé&ee Davisv. United Sates, 417 U.S. 333, 343
(1974). For the reasons explained in this Enting, motion of Austin Williams, Jr., for relief
pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 2255 must be denietithis action dismissed with prejudice.

In addition, the Court finds that a certdite of appealability should not issue.

|. Background

On October 23, 2013, Williams was charged ireat-count Indictment in the Southern
District of Indiana. Crim. Docket No. 1€ounts 1 through 3 charged Williams with sexual
exploitation of a child, in violation of 18 UG. § 2251(a). Counts 4 and 5 charged Williams with
enticing a minor through internebmmunications, in violation df8 U.S.C. § 2422(b). Counts 6
and 7 charged Williams with distribution ofilchpornography, in violation of 18 U.S.C. Id. §
2252(a)(2). Count 8 charged Williams with passen of child pornography, in violation of 18

U.S.C. § 2252(a)(4)(B).
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On April 25, 2014, Williams filed a Petition tnter a Plea of Guilty. Crim. Docket No.
31. In the Petition, Williams represted to the Court &t he received a comf the Indictment,
read and discussed it with fagorney, and understood the charlgesight against him. He stated
that his attorney had advised him of the punishyreemd that he offered his plea of guilty freely
and voluntarily and of his own accord. Petition, 1 3, 4, and 10.

On that same date, a Plea Agreement was filed pursuant to Federal Rules of Criminal
Procedure 11(c)(1)(B). Crim. Docket No. 32. The parties agreed that Williams would plead guilty
to Counts 1 through 8 as charged in the Indictmbht.The parties agreed that the final
determination of William’s sentence, including the applicable advisory guideline calculation,
criminal history category, and advisory sentegoguideline range would be made by the Court.

Id. The government agreed that the Court sheeldtence Williams to a term of imprisonment
between 15 and 50 years, followed by a term of supervised release of at least 10 years and up to
life. In exchange for the concessions made byuthited States, Williams agreed that in the event

the Court accepted this Plea Agreement and ieghas sentence of noeagter than 50 years,
Williams would waive his right to appeal his coctwdon and sentence and to waive any collateral
attack against his conviction and sentemdel he waiver did not encompass claims of ineffective
assistance of counsel in the negotiatof the plea or plea agreemdaut.

On June 30, 2014, the Court held a changaes hearing. Crim. Docket No. 37. Before
the hearing, the parties filed amtiated factual basis signed bijthe parties, including Williams.
Crim. Docket No. 30. During the change of pleating, the Court advised Williams of his rights
and the possible penalties and atedphe parties’ stipulated faetl basis as an adequate basis

for the plea. Crim. Docket No. 37. The Court fodhat Williams was fully competent and able to



enter an informed plea, and that the plea was made voluntarily and knowthgiyhe Court
reviewed the stipulated factual basis for fflea and found that the plea is supported by an
independent basis in fact comtizmig each of the essential elements of the offenses chadgéte
Court then accepted Williams’s guilty plea amdjudged him guilty of Counts 1 through 8 as
charged in the Indictmentd. See also dkt. 66 (Transcript of Guilty Plea Hearing).

On October 1, 2014, the Court held Williamsé&ntencing hearing. Crim. Docket No. 54;
see also dkt. 71 (Transcript of Sentencing Hearing). Williams was sentenced to 336 months’
imprisonment to be followed byldetime of supervised releaskl. Williams was also assessed
the mandatory assessment of $800 and a fine in the amount of $4.500e Court entered a
judgment of conviction on Oaber 3, 2014. Crim. Docket No. 55.

On October 14, 2014, Williams filed a noticeagfpeal. Crim. Doakt No. 58. On March
23, 2015, Williams filed a motion to voluntaritismiss his appeal and on March 24, 2015, the
Seventh Circuit ordered tlttismissal of his appeal.

On March 21, 2016, Williams filed this motidar post-conviction relief pursuant to 28
U.S.C. § 2255. Williams’ motion seeks a sentence reduction and asserts four grounds for relief.
The United States responded aNdliams did not file a reply.

[l. Discussion

Williams filed this § 2255 motion seeking a sentence reduction. He asserts that his counsel
was ineffective because she failed to adequat@isesent him. His assertions in this regard are
general and vagududge v. Quinn, 612 F.3d 537, 557 (7th Cir. 2010) (“Weave made clear in
the past that it is not the obligation of this ¢dorresearch and construct legal arguments open to

parties . . . and we have warned that perfugctind undeveloped arguments, and arguments that



are unsupported by pertinent authority, are waiye(internal quotation marks and alterations
omitted).

Specifically, Williams’ motion provides:
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In addition to these vague assertions that nsbld have been done on his behalf, Williams'’s
claims revolve around the fact thia is unhappy with his sentan He claims he should have
received the mandatory minimum sentencesirgence was cruel and unusual punishment based
on his age (22) at the time of conviction aegdwuse it was his first felony. Williams’s final claim
for relief is that there is no physicabidence to convict him of Count 4.

The United States argues that Williams’s § 2@fsion should be dismissed with prejudice
because it is barred by the waiver of post-conviatédef rights set forth in the plea agreement.
The United States is correct. The Plea Agreement entered into between defendant Williams and
the United States in Case No. 1:13-cr-2268/ADML-1 and accepted by the Court contains a
provision whereby Williams expressly agreed notdatest, or seek to modify, his conviction or

sentence or the manner in which it was detegchin an action brought under 28 U.S.C. § 2255.



“In order for a plea to be valid, it must bede voluntarily, knowigly, and intelligently.”
United Satesv. Hays, 397 F.3d 564, 567 (7th Cir. 2005) (citingses). A plea is voluntary when
it is not induced by threats or misrepresentatiansl, the defendant is madevare of the direct
consequences of the pldadnited Sates v. Jordan, 870 F.2d 1310, 1317 (7th 1CiL989) (citing
Brady v. United Sates, 397 U.S. 742, 755 (1970)). In this case, Williams is not challenging the
voluntariness of the negotiation of the waiver in his plea agreement. Nor has Williams identified
any basis upon which this Courtutd conclude that his acceptanaiethe waiver was tainted by
ineffective assistance of counsdlhere is no allegation or ewdce that the waiver was not
knowingly and voluntarily made.

The Seventh Circuit has recognized the validitwaivers such as that included in the Plea
Agreement in this case. “A waiver of appealdbpost-conviction relief ghts] is valid, and must
be enforced, unless the agreementtliich it is contained is annulledJnited Satesv. Hare, 269
F.3d 859, 860 (7th Cir. 2001). Accordingly, the veiof the right to file a petition under § 2255
is enforceable.

In addition, Williams’s claim that there wassirfficient evidence to convict him of Count
4 is summarily rejected. Williams pled guilty aimddoing so, accepted all the facts alleged in the
Indictment. Further, Williams signed a stipulated factual basis admitting to the facts of this case
that was filed with the Court and relied upon flois plea of guilty. Unfortunately for Williams,
his guilty plea precludes hisdim “raising any question regang the facts alleged in the
indictment.” United Sates v. Walton, 36 F.3d 32, 34 (7th Cir. 1994). Williams has “admitted all
those facts and cannot undo his admissiod.™Further, he has wagd all non-jurisdictional

challenges to his convictionWalton, 36 F.3d at 34.



The motion for relief pursuant to § 2255 is therefdenied. Judgment consistent with this
Entry shall now issue.

Theclerk isdirected to file a copy of this Entry i€ase No. 1:13-cr-226-WTL-DML-1.

[11. Certificate of Appealability

Pursuant to Federal Rule of Appellate Prchae 22(b), Rule 11(a) ¢fie Rules Governing
§ 2255 proceedings, and 28 U.S.C. § 2253(c), the @odg that Williams has failed to show that
reasonable jurists would find thSourt’s “assessment of the ctihgional claims debatable or
wrong.” Sack v. McDaniel, 529 U.S. 473, 484 (2000). The Court thereloEENIES a certificate

of appealability.

ITISSO ORDERED. _ )
Witin 3P

Date: 5/17/17 Hon. William T Lawrence Judge
United States District Court
Southern District of Indiana
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